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Sally Stallan

Senior Planning Officer

Horsham District Council

Park House

North Street

Horsham 

RH12 1RL









    21st November 2007

Dear Mrs Stallan, 

RESERVE HOUSING SITES ISSUES & OPTIONS CONSULTATION

Introduction

Thank you for consulting the Home Builders Federation (HBF) on your council’s reserve housing sites issues and options document. Firstly we welcome the fact that the council is proposing to produce this document and that it is to be taken through the statutory process as a development plan document. We have a number of comments to make on the questions raised in the document and these are set out below.

Issue 1 Triggers for Release: Timing

The housing requirement is set as an annual requirement. The monitoring process is based on a system of annual monitoring reports which include updated housing trajectories. HBF’s view is that the managing and release of sites should be an annual process based on the AMR. The problems with longer periods is that there is always an excuse not to release sites. As HBF has long argued, the consequences of a slight ‘over-delivery’ of housing against targets are much less serious that the consequences of under-delivery. The operation of an annual process is more likely to ensure that the trajectory remains on target. The release of a reserve site (or sites) in any given year not only makes up for any shortfall in the previous year but also provides a cushion to protect against a further shortfall arising in future years. A longer time period would mean a longer lag and a greater likelihood of longer and more serious shortfalls.

The only justification for longer periods is if it becomes clear, a few years in to the process, that these fairly small-scale releases are not sufficient and that a major release needs to be made. Then, it may be appropriate to look over a two year period in order that there is sufficient justification for a large release. Otherwise the situation should be kept in check with smaller-scale annual releases.

Issues 2 Triggers for Release: Numbers

Quite simply, if there is a shortfall in any given year then (comments made above notwithstanding) it should be made up by way of a release. The only exception to that is in terms of the cumulative position and where that shows a surplus. For example, in a series of years where there have been a surplus of completions followed by a year of shortfall, provided the cumulative provision shows a surplus over the cumulative annualised requirement, it may not be necessary to make a release in the year of shortfall. Even then, however, it will also be necessary to consider the housing trajectory for the following year. If it shows completions coming on track then no release is necessary. However, if the trajectory shows another year (or more) of lower completions then further releases will be necessary in order to protect against future shortfalls. Therefore Option B (as caveated above) would be HBF’s preference.

Issue 3 Assessing Shortfall

This is largely answered above. This should be an annual monitoring process. Any annual shortfall should be assessed against the cumulative position and, if that shows a shortfall, a release should be made. This is an amalgam of both Options A and B.

Issue 4 Monitoring Requirement

HBF would wish this process to be as simple and clear as possible. Our preference would be that there should not be an additional monitoring paper due to the complexity and additional workload that would involve. This view is based on experiences elsewhere in the recent past (the Hampshire H4 policy process). The monitoring information necessary to make the release decisions should all be contained in the single AMR document. In terms of future projections, this information should be contained in the housing trajectory which should form part of the AMR.

Issue 5 Number of Homes to be Released

It is HBF’s view that the council will need to identify and allocate a portfolio of sites of differing size and in different geographical locations in order to ensure there is sufficient flexibility built in to the process for it to operate effectively. There need to be sufficient smaller to medium sized sites, in particular, with maybe only one or two large sites. 

The size of release should equate to the size of the shortfall. This should be a minimum. There is no need to worry about ‘over-provision’ as there is no such thing, this being a continuing year-on-year process. Any ‘over-provision’ will assist in meeting future years’ targets. There should, therefore, be no cap on the annual releases.

It is also worth bearing in mind that, whilst the panel who conducted the examination into the South East Plan did not go so far as the recommend that the housing targets were minimum targets, they did make clear in their report that they should not be treated as ceilings nor should there be any attempt to ration planning permissions to avoid outperforming the RSS (paragraph 7.115 of the SE Plan panel report).

Therefore HBF would not support either Option A or B . Our preference would be for the size of release to match the scale of the shortfall regardless of how large or small.

Issues 6, 7 & 8 Nature, Size and Type of Sites to be Released

HBF does not wish to comment on these issues due to the nature of our relationship with our Members who may be pursuing sites in a variety of locations in the district.  The key should be, however, that whatever sites are selected should be proven to be deliverable and able to be released in the timescale in which they may be required. 

In terms of the size of site, as stated above, a range of different sites will be required in order to provide the flexibility to respond to different scales of shortfall.

I hope that you will find these comments helpful and that they will be taken on board when the council comes to draft policies for the development plan document. I would, of course, be happy to discuss any of these matters with you further should you so wish. Otherwise I look forward to being kept informed of progress on the preparation of the DPD as it goes through the statutory process.

Yours sincerely,
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Pete Errington

Home Builders Federation

Regional Policy Manager (South, East & London)
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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